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Staff Report 
Administration 

Report To: Committee of The Whole 
Meeting Date: June 16, 2020 
Report Number: CSOPS.20.042 
Subject: Request to Single Source Leisure Activities Plan Consulting Services 
Prepared by:  Ryan Gibbons, Director of Community Services  

A. Recommendations 

THAT Council receive Staff Report CSOPS.20.042, entitled “Request to Single Source Leisure 
Activities Plan Consulting Services”;  

AND THAT Council approve the 2020 Leisure Activities Plan to proceed as outlined in the 2020 
Approved Budget, as required by Council as this project has a total funding request of over 
$50,000; 

AND THAT Council reduce the overall budget for the Leisure Activity Plan from $290,000 to 
$87,850; 

AND THAT Council redirect the 2020 Taxation savings of $137,275 to cover the additional costs 
and lost revenues due to the COVID-19 Pandemic; 

AND THAT Council approve the single sourcing of the 2020 Leisure Activities Plan Consulting 
Services to Dunbar & Associates at a total price of $47,850.00 plus taxes, as outlined in the 
unsolicited proposal provided by Dunbar & Associates.  

B. Overview 

Staff is bringing this request to single source Dunbar & Associates for the development of the 
2020 Leisure Activities Plan, as a result of receiving an unsolicited Proposal by Dunbar & 
Associates that provides the Town with significant cost savings and the ability to utilize local 
expertise. 

C. Background 

Staff received an unsolicited proposal from Dunbar & Associates who has also partnered with 
Mr. Chris Fawcett. Peter Dunbar of Dunbar & Associates, along with Mr. Fawcett, have provided 
summaries of their experiences that have provided a very interesting and unique opportunity 
for staff to consider their proposal and bring forward to Council for their consideration in 
permitting staff to single source the services.  
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D. Analysis 

In Purchasing Policy POL.COR.07.05, Section 7 - Unsolicited Proposals states: 

“Unsolicited bids received by the Town shall be reviewed by the respective Department Head 
and Purchasing. Unsolicited proposals must be in writing detailing information on a product or 
service that may provide the Town with significant value or savings.” 

In Purchasing Policy POL.COR.07.05, Section 9 - Sole and Single Sourcing states: 

“Sole Sourcing is a method of procurement whereby a purchase order is issued, or contract 
awarded without a competitive bidding process due to the fact that the supplier is the only 
source of supply for the required goods or services. 

Single Sourcing is a method of procurement whereby there is more than one vendor able to 
supply and a purchase order is issued, or contract awarded without a competitive bidding 
process. 

The use of Sole and Single Sourcing with a particular vendor exceeding $25,000 must be 
approved by Council.  Any single or sole sourcing with an amount between $5,001 and $24,999 
must be reported by the applicable Department Head and approved by the Manager of 
Purchasing and Director of Finance. In order for a division to sole or single source for goods or 
services exceeding $25,000, an operating strategy must be presented with Purchasing input and 
approved by Council, outlining the rationale.  Input must be sought from the Manager of 
Purchasing to ensure the purchasing principles in the Town’s Procedures are taken into 
consideration and risk to the Town is minimized.” 

Unsolicited Proposal Submission 

Town staff received an unsolicited proposal from Dunbar & Associates on April 23, 2020. 

A virtual meeting was set up to discuss the proposal which provided staff an opportunity to 
outline and detail the expectations of town staff, as well as the deliverables of the project and 
overall outline of what the final product would look like. 

As a follow up to a virtual meeting with Chris Fawcett and Peter Dunbar, Director of Community 
Services Ryan Gibbons and CAO Shawn Everitt received an updated proposal that was 
submitted on May 19, 2020 reflecting a total proposed price of $47,850.00, and a proposal that 
is reflective of the information shared in the above noted meeting. 

As outlined, the Town would be responsible for costs relating to the following: 

• mass mailing of the promotional post-card type communication;  
• assist in obtaining maximum response to the survey;  
• mapping and information / documentation to secure the best estimates of population 

demographics for 5-10-15 + years;  
• meeting spaces and meeting notices;  
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• printing of hard copy survey and distribution via municipal processes available. 

There was also discussion regarding the possibility of a Community Task Force similar to the 
structure of the 2006 Leisure Activities Plan process, where a smaller group representing the 
Community would assist in the information gathering and development of the 2020 Leisure 
Activities Plan. 

The impact that COVID-19 has on community projects and, in particular community information 
gathering, and completion of survey’s is unknown at this time. However, through discussion 
with Mr. Fawcett and Mr. Dunbar we believe the timing is actually very good while people have 
a different perspective and have some time to take part in the survey. Survey development and 
analysis is another area of expertise that Dunbar & Associates brings to the table. As a result of 
our discussions, an additional aspect to the updated proposal was having Ms. Lynn Black being 
added to their team as Survey Manager. 

The proposal outlines a series of 4 focus group sessions spread out over the municipality. This is 
a goal that has been set and is a key element. However, with the impacts of COVID-19 this will 
have to be determined as we move forward, and alternate communication and engagement 
will be considered with the assistance of our Manager of Communications and Economic 
Development.  

Through this report, staff is recommending that we move forward with this important 
community plan. The experience and expertise that Dunbar & Associates has is extremely 
impressive, coupled by the local knowledge both historical and current. Mr. Dunbar has 
provided consulting services for over 20 years and has over 30 year in the municipal world. Mr. 
Fawcett has significant experience in the municipal field and has the unique experience of 
working for the Former Collingwood Township, and Town of The Blue Mountains as Treasurer 
and Town manager for over 20 years. Mr. Fawcett continues to call The Blue Mountains his 
home and was instrumental in bringing this proposal forward.  

It is anticipated that this project will be jointly developed between Town staff and Dunbar & 
Associates. Based on previous budget deliberations over the past two years, the use of 
consulting services has been a topic of debate. Staff believes that this opportunity is exactly 
what has been referred to as a preferred way of doing these types of Community Plans. Having 
a local consulting firm equipped with strong local knowledge, while providing pricing that is well 
below the anticipated budget presents a proposal and opportunity that realizes what staff 
believes Council desires. 

In addition, prior to COVID-19 staff had arranged for a College co-op student position to assist 
with the analysis and assessment of existing facilities, along with consideration of trend 
analysis, that would be incorporated into the Leisure Activities Plan development. 

E. The Blue Mountains Strategic Plan  

Goal #1: Create Opportunities for Sustainability 
Objective #1 Retain Existing Business 
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Objective #2 Attract New Business 
Objective #3 Promote a Diversified Economy 
Objective #4 Support Value-Added Agriculture and Culinary Tourism 
Objective #5 Improved Visibility and Local Identity 

Goal #2: Engage Our Communities & Partners 
Objective #1 Improve External Communication with our Constituents 
Objective #2 Use Technology to Advance Engagement 
Objective #3 Strengthen Partnerships 

Goal #3:  Support Healthy Lifestyles 
Objective #1 Promote the Town as a Healthy Community 
Objective #4 Commit to Sustainability 

Goal #4: Promote a Culture of Organizational & Operational Excellence 
Objective #1 To Be an Employer of Choice 
Objective #3 To Consistently Deliver Excellent Customer Service 
Objective #4 To Be a Financially Responsible Organization 
Objective #5 Constantly Identify Opportunities to Improve Efficiencies and Effectiveness 

Goal #5: Ensure Our Infrastructure is Sustainable 
Objective #1 Develop a Long-Term Asset Management Plan for the Maintenance, Renewal 

and Replacement of Existing Infrastructure 
Objective #2 Avoid Unexpected Infrastructure Failure and Associated Costs and Liability 
Objective #3 Implement Best Practices in Sustainable Infrastructure 
Objective #4 Ensure that Infrastructure is Available to Support Development 

F. Environmental Impacts 

The development of a 2020 Leisure Activities as outlined in the 2020 Approved Budget will 
incorporate sound environmental stewardship practices. 

G. Financial Impact 

Updating the Leisure Activity Plan (LAP) was included in the 2020 Approved Budget at a total 
cost of $290,000. The budget was split between $25,000 for a Master’s/PhD level academic co-
op position, and $265,000 that was undetermined at the time the budget was presented. The 
original plan was to bring a plan back to Council outlining how the LAP could be completed in 
house. This was all before the COVID-19 pandemic and receiving the unsolicited proposal.  

The funding was split between 2020 Taxation ($205,375), Parks and Recreation Development 
Charges ($59,625), and the Community Service Asset Replacement Reserve Fund ($25,000). The 
funding split comes from the Development Charges Background Study which includes a Benefit 
to Existing and legislated 10% discount that can be funded from Development Charges.  
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The new budget that staff are recommending is $87,850. The split is $47,850 for the external 
consultant and $40,000 for communication, printing materials, and mail outs. At this point due 
to the circumstances of the COVID-19 pandemic, staff is not recommending moving forward 
with the Master’s/PhD co-op position which eliminates the $25,000 budget.  

The new funding will be $68,100 2020 Taxation and $19,750 Parks and Recreation Development 
Charges. The remaining $137,275 in 2020 Taxation will be redeployed to help mitigate the 
financial impact that the Town is facing with the COVID-19 pandemic.  

H. In consultation with 

Senior Management Team 

Manager of Budgets 

Manager of Purchasing and Risk Management 

I. Public Engagement 

The topic of this Staff Report has been the subject of a Public Meeting and/or a Public 
Information Centre which took place on Monday, March 9, 2020. Those who provided 
comments at the Public Meeting and/or Public Information Centre, including anyone who has 
asked to receive notice regarding this matter, have been provided notice of this Staff Report. 

Comments regarding this report should be submitted to Ryan Gibbons, 
directorcs@thebluemountains.ca. 

J. Attached 

1. Dunbar & Associates Proposal 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Ryan Gibbons 
Director of Community Services 

For more information, please contact: 
Ryan Gibbons 
directorcs@thebluemountains.ca 
519-599-3131 extension 281 

mailto:directorcs@thebluemountains.ca
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